

# Minutes of a meeting of the Shipley Area Committee held on Wednesday, 13 December 2017 at Windhill Community Centre

Commenced 6.00 pm Concluded 7.35 pm

#### **Present - Councillors**

CONSERVATIVE	LABOUR	GREEN	
Heseltine	Greenwood	Love	
Shaw			
Barker			
Davies			
Riaz			
Townend			

Apologies: Councillor Hawarun Hussain

#### **Councillor Heseltine in the Chair**

#### 42. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

No disclosures of interest in matters under consideration were received.

#### 43. INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

There were no appeals submitted by the public to review decisions to restrict documents.

## 44. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no questions submitted by the public.

# 45. SHIPLEY AREA COMMITTEE AND SHIPLEY CONSTITUENCY AREA PARTNERS' ADVISORY GROUP (SCAPAG) ISSUES

Pete Chambers, SCAPAG member representing the Saltaire Village Society (SVS), submitted the following two issues:

"Firstly, I would like to extend the thanks of the SVS Committee to the Council officers with whom we are working to secure the future of the public toilets in Saltaire. The constructive approach being taken to discussions is appreciated. However, we do need to clearly convey the message that this project is one that will be a great challenge for the SVS Committee in terms of experience, finance, and resource, and any support that the Shipley Area Committee can lend will be

very welcome.

Secondly, we would like to remind Committee Members of the importance of the role of the World Heritage Site Officer and ask Members to do whatever they can to ensure that the Council seek to recruit to this post, accepting nothing less that a candidate as well qualified and driven as the outgoing post-holder. This is raised by SVS but also has the support of The History Club, Saltaire Stories, and The Salt Foundation."

The Chair, in relation to the first issue raised, wished the SVS well in its endeavours to secure the continuation of the public toilets in Saltaire. In relation to the second issue, he stated that the Committee recognised the importance of the World Heritage Site Officer and supported a timely appointment to the post of someone fit for the job. The Chair stated he would pass on the concerns raised to the relevant Council officers.

#### Resolved -

No resolution was passed on this item.

#### NO ACTION

#### 46. SCAPAG MEETING NOTES - 11 OCTOBER 2017

The Area Co-ordinator presented the notes (**Document "R"**) of SCAPAG contributions made at the meeting with the Area Committee held on 11 October 2017.

# Resolved -

That the notes be received.

#### **NO ACTION**

## 47. YOUTH OFFER - SHIPLEY AREA

The Strategic Director of Place submitted **Document "S"** which informed the Area Committee of the progress made in relation to the establishment of the new Youth Offer across the Bradford District and specifically in the Shipley area.

The District's Youth Commissioner, the Advanced Practitioner for the Shipley area, a representative from Emerge and a representative from the National Citizenship Programme were in attendance at the meeting. The Advanced Practitioner provided a presentation of the work being undertaken, as detailed in the report.

The representative from Emerge addressed the Committee to explain the detached youth work he undertook. This included forestry work with young people, speaking to young people on the streets and work to tackle anti social behaviour. He highlighted the communication that took place across the youth





hub network in dealing with some of the more challenging behaviour.

The Advanced Practitioner informed Members that the service had received 12 referrals from the CSE hub, 19 early help referrals and 59 Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) referrals. She stated that a good relationship with the Police had been developed and Police officers attended sessions to talk to young people as well as undertaking a range of projects offering targeted youth provision. New and innovative ways to engage with young people were being explored.

The Youth Commissioner explained the local authorities' obligation to support the National Citizenship Programme. It was confirmed that during Summer 2017 over 1,200 young people had taken part in that programme, 11% of which were from the Shipley Constituency. 15% of participants were those eligible for free school meals and a fairly even balance of gender was recorded. The National Citizenship Programme representative went on to tell Members about the confidence building work that had taken place with young people. She invited Members to attend sessions that were being held as part of the programme over Summer 2018.

The representative from the National Citizenship Programme spoke of the work undertaken with Shipley College and Bingley Grammar School (which had been nominated for a Telegraph and Argus Bradford School's Award for Voluntary Contribution). She looked forward to working with officers across the Council to ensure that young people were sign posted to other opportunities across the District, helping to engage them in activities within their communities beyond the lifetime of the programme.

The Chair thanked the officers for their presentation and agreed that encouraging young people to be advocates for their communities following their time on the National Citizenship Programme was a positive move. He requested information on the Summer programme for 2018 be sent to Members and SCAPAG Members via the Advanced Practitioner. He considered there were better working arrangements in place, breaking down the silo mentality that previously existed which enabled better value for money.

During the presentation, the Advanced Practitioner had alluded to a consultation undertaken with young people engaged with the service. The Chair requested that feedback from this consultation be shared with Members in order to assist them in considering how to increase their interactions with young people in future.

A Member stated that she had been unaware of some of the work that had been taking place in her ward (Windhill and Wrose) and commented on the need for better communication going forward. It was agreed that the Advanced Practitioner and Shipley Area Co-ordinator would look into the best way forward on this matter so that Members were kept informed of youth service work in their wards.

In response to Members' questions, it was reported that:





- The Children's Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee received a report on Youth Service work annually and the Youth Officer bi-annually.
- The Baildon Youth session had recently had to close on a Monday evening due to staff absence and a lack of resources to cover the sessions. This was an area where the service wanted to increase volunteering in order to avoid situations like this in future.
- The 12-week plan, January-March 2018, had not yet been finalised; a request for intergenerational work in Baildon was noted.
- Schools now directly held a licence for the Duke of Edinburgh Awards and took a lead on this. The Council did not hold a licence.
- The report highlighted some, not all, of the work undertaken within the constituency; information, support and guidance work was delivered in the Baildon area, however, it was not detailed in the report.
- The Take Over Challenge was delivered in areas where young people had expressed an interest; it was not delivered in every ward of the Shipley Constituency; it ran annually in November.
- A partnership meeting of agencies working with young people in Baildon was held in November. The delivery of archery sessions in Baildon during 2018 was being explored.
- Officers had been in discussions with the Police in relation to anti-social behaviour of young people in the Wrose, Idle and Eccleshill areas; a pilot programme led by The Springfield Centre in Idle was due to be introduced to help tackle this issue.

A Member thanked officers for the work undertaken in relation to Duke of Edinburgh sessions for young people in the Wharfedale Ward.

It was reported that Ward Partnership meetings would pick up on issues resulting from the loss of youth service sessions in Cottingley.

#### Resolved -

#### That the Committee:

- (1) Notes the achievements of the Youth Offer Working Group and the Youth Sector as a whole, as outlined in the Action Plan (Appendix A of Document "S") and receives a further update in respect of this work in 12 months time.
- (2) Notes the work already undertaken around Youth Voice and commits to formalising Youth Voice arrangements in respect of the Shipley Area Committee work plan for 2017-18.

(3) Thanks the Youth Service and partners for their on-going work in





helping our younger generation in the Shipley Constituency and thanks all the young people that contribute to our communities.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: Children's Services ACTION: Strategic Director, Place

#### 48. DEMENTIA FRIENDLY COMMUNITIES - SHIPLEY AREA

The Strategic Director of Place submitted **Document "T"** which informed the Committee how the work of the Shipley Area Co-ordinator's Office and the Alzheimer's Society was contributing to the creation of dementia friendly communities within the Shipley constituency.

The Ward Officer and Dementia Champion, who had attended the meeting dressed as an Elf, explained that this was in aid of Elf Day; to raise money to support people with dementia and their families. Although the official Alzheimer's Society Elf Day was 8 December, the Shipley Area Co-ordinator's Office had decided to expand this over the week. Members were invited to the Shipley Area Co-ordinator's Office on Friday 15 December 2017 to join in with a number of fundraising activities.

#### Members were informed that:

- The Dementia Friendly training session lasted 45 minutes to one hour; five key
  messages about Dementia were taught, as well as small steps that could be
  taken by participants. It was a fun session, put together by the Alzheimer's
  Society.
- Dementia Friendly was included in the Ward Plans for the Shipley Constituency.
- The Menston and Burley in Wharfedale areas had dementia friendly communities groups set up and Burley in Wharfedale was doing particularly well.
- It had been a struggle to get this initiative off the ground in the Shipley area but there had been some positive engagements during the Shipley Christmas lights switch on.
- Burley in Wharfedale had won a national Dementia Friendly Award and had attended a ceremony in London on 29 November 2017 to receive it; they were the only voluntary group nominated in their category.
- One of the key successes of the Burley in Wharfedale group was to have people living with Dementia as part of the group who could make recommendations for improvements from their first hand experiences.
- The Burley in Wharfedale group had a great working relationship with the local GP surgery, which referred people to some of their provision; one being the Memory Tree, for the later stages of Dementia at which peer support was provided for carers.
- Over 250 Dementia Friends sessions had been delivered in Burley in Wharfedale, one of which was at a local primary school, following which people with Dementia were invited to the school's dress rehearsal for their School of Rock summer play. This was great on an intergenerational level and was well received.





- Work had been undertaken with churches and other organisations around sensitive event programming that people with Dementia could enjoy.
- A presentation had been given to the Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee, with a representative from the Alzheimer's Society, on Dementia; the Committee had resolved to recommend to Council that all elected Members receive Dementia Friends training.

A Member, who was also the Chair of the Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee, confirmed that the recommendation from that Committee had been presented to Full Council. Full Council had resolved that Dementia Friends training would be provided for Members and, although it was not mandatory, Members were strongly encouraged to undertake it. A Member who had previously undertaken the training stated that it was very informative.

The Chair stressed the need for better links within the Council on officers undertaking work around Dementia and suggested schools would be a good resource. He praised the work on Dementia being undertaken in Burley in Wharfedale and spoke of the need to capture good practice and encourage other communities to follow an established 'route plan'. The Ward Officer agreed and stated that things like existing templates could be duplicated to make it easier for other communities to follow in the footsteps of the good work done in Burley in Wharfedale. Another Member suggested an open event in Burley in Wharfedale to help showcase the work there and show others how it was done.

#### Resolved -

- (1) That the work to support communities within the Shipley area to become Dementia Friendly be noted and welcomed.
- (2) That the voluntary bodies who undertake this work in the Shipley Constituency, helping to enrich the lives of carers and the cared for, be thanked.
- (3) That the Burley in Wharfedale Dementia Action Group be congratulated on winning a National Dementia Friendly Award.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: Corporate ACTION: Strategic Director, Place

Chair

Note: These minutes are subject to approval as a correct record at the next meeting of the Shipley Area Committee.

THESE MINUTES HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



